WOOA

### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA STATE OF FLORIDA

BILLY WAYNE DANIELS, Jr., Petitioner,

**CASE NO: 91,537** 

FILED

STATE OF FLORIDA, Respondent.

٧.

JAN 28 1998

CHIEF Deputy Chick

## AMENDMENTS FOR PETITIONER'S BRIEF IN SUPPORT OF PETITION FOR WRIT OF CERTIORARI

COMES NOW, Billy Wayne Daniels Jr., Petitioner, pursuant to Rule 9.040(d) Fla. App. P., and will present this, his Amendments for his Brief in Support of Petition for Writ of Certiorari, and will evince the following

### **SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS**

Ι

Petitioner initially argues that the district court below erred in failing to dismiss his rule 3.850 appeal, upon Petitioner's timely Motion for Dismissal of same, where the circuit court lacked jurisdiction, ab initio, to rule on the 3.850 motion.

II

Petitioner further argues that because the appellate court acknowledged that the circuit lacked jurisdiction over the case because of a pending direct appeal, the appellate court erred by affirming the circuit court's denial of Petitioner's rule 3.850 motion, rather than reversing and ordering the circuit court to quash its decision.

III

Petitioner finally argues that assuming the appellate court could properly review the circuit court's denial of Petitioner's rule 3.850 motion, it is contended that the appellate court erred in affirming the circuit courts decision without prejudice to Petitioner's right to refile the rule 3.850 motion in the circuit court after the disposition of the appeal.

Respectfully submitted by,

Billy Wayne Daniels #580723

Holmes Work Camp 3182 Thomas Drive Bonifay, FL 32425

### CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true copy of this Summary of Arguments has been furnished by U.S. Mail to Honorable Robert A. Butterworth, Attorney General, 301 Martin L. King Jr. Blvd., Tallahassee, FL 32399-1050 on January 26, 1998.

Bills Warm Daniels,

# Appendix

### INDEX OF DOCUMENTS

(APP "A") Notice of Appeal by Counsel (direct).

- B Motion for Postconviction Relief.
- C Order Granting Insolvency.
- D Order Denying Motion for Postconviction Relief.
- E Motion for Rehearing.
- F Order Denying Rehearing.
- G Notice of Appeal (3.850).
- H Letter to Jon S. Wheeler, DCA Clerk.
- I Letter to Shelly Yon, Circuit Clerk.
- J Letter from Shelly Yon.
- K Letter from Shelly Yon.
- L Letter from DCA Clerk.
- M Letter from DCA Clerk.
- N Motion to Dismiss.
- Order Denying Motion to Dismiss.
- P July 11, 1997, Opinion in question.
- Q Order Denying Rehearing.
- R Notice to Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction.

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FOURTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR CALHOUN COUNTY, FLORIDA.

CIR93-183

CIR93-181, CIR93-182 5

BILLY WAYNE DANIELS,

Defendant/Appellant,

CASE NUMBER: CIR93-177, CIR93-178 CIR93-179, CIR93-180

STATE OF FLORIDA,

v.

Plaintiff/Appellee.

NOTICE OF APPEAL

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that BILLY WAYNE DANIELS, Defendant/Appellant, appeals to the District Court of Appeal, First District of the State of Florida, pursuant to Rule 9.030(b), Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure, the judgment and sentence entered herein on the 22nd day of April, 1996.

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a copy hereof has been served upon the State Attorney, Fourteenth Judicial Circuit, by and through the Honorable H. Hentz McClellan, Assistant State Attorney, P.O. Box 503, Blounstown, Florida, 32424; the Honorable BOB BUTTERWORTH, Attorney General, State of Florida, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida, 32301, by U.S. Mail 20s day of May, 1996.

HERMAN D. LARAMORE PUBLIC DEFENDER

FOURTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

BY:

JOHN A. RATZLAFF

ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER

FOURTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

Post Office Box 1562

Marianna, Florida (904) 482-3099

Florida Bar No. 436526

ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT/APPELLANT

(APP "A")

IN	THE (	CIRCU JU	IT COU	RT C	OF IRC	THE
			CALHO			
COU	NTY	FLOR	IDA		•	

CRIMINAL DIVISION

STATE OF FLORIDA,
Plaintiff,

v.	CASE NO. (s): 93477 through 9318
 Bij	Defendant,
	MOTION FOR POSTCONVICTION RELIEF
1.	Name and location of the court that entered the judgment of
cen	viction under attack: Cal Hosa County Court
2.	Late of judgment of conviction: February 6,1995
Ι.	Length of sentence: twenty years
4.	Nature of offense(s) involved (all counts): Violation of
Pro	bation
5.	What was your plea? (check one)
	(a) Not guilty 🔀
	(b) Guilty
	(c) Nolo contendere
	(d) Not guilty by reason of insanity
īſ	you entered on plea to one count and a different oblea to another
COL	unt, give details:

(APP"B")

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FOURTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR CALHOUN COUNTY, FLORIDA.

BILLY WAYNE DANIELS,

Defendant/Appellant,

STATE OF FLORIDA,

v.

Plaintiff/Appellee.

CASE NUMBER:

93-177, 93-178

93-179, 93-180, 93-185, 93-182,

93-I83

N 12 P

### ORDER OF INSOLVENCY

THIS CAUSE coming on before me upon the Motion of the Defendant/Appellant, BILLY WAYNE DANIELS, for the appointment of counsel to represent him on appeal from the judgment and sentence previously entered in this cause, the Court having been advised in the premises and having previously made inquiry of the Defendant and having found him so insolvent that he was incapable of hiring his own attorney, it is, hereby

ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that the Public Defender, Fourteenth Judicial Circuit, in the State of Florida, be, and he is hereby appointed to represent the Defendant on his appeal in this cause. It is further

ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that the Defendant, BILLY WAYNE DANIELS, is without funds to pay the costs of his appeal and that Calhoun County, Florida, shall bear any and all costs necessary and incident to the prosecution of this appeal for the Defendant.



(APP "C")

DONE AND ORDERED in Chambers in Blountstown, Calhoun County,

Florida, this 28 day of 6

CILINTON E FOSTER

CIRCUIT JUDGE

\_, 1996.

Copies furnished to:

Honorable H. Hentz McClellan Assistant State Attorney

Honorable John A. Ratzlaff Assistant Public Defender

### IN THE CIRCUIT COURT, FOURTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT-OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA, IN AND FOR BAY COUNTY

Case No. 93-177-183

STATE OF FLORIDA.

Plaintiff,

v

BILLY W. DANIELS JR.. Defendant.

### ORDER DENYING MOTION FOR POST-CONVICTION RELIEF

This Court, having received the Defendant's motion dated May 28, 1996; and after reviewing same, finds:

- The claim ofineffective assistance of counsel due to counsel's failure to investigate is successive as it is merely a rewording of an issue resolved by the First District Court of Appeal.

  One can not reword issues raised on direct appeal as an ineffective assistance of counselallegation on post-conviction in an effort to re-litigate issues which were raised on direct appeal. Medina v.

  State, 573 So. Id 293, 295 (Fla. 1990).
- 2. A defendant claiming ineffective assistance of counsel due to the failure to advise on the right to testify must satisfy the second prong of <u>Strickland v. Washington</u>, 466 U.S. 668, 687 (1984), counsel's deficient performance prejudiced the defense. <u>State v. Oisorio</u>, 657 so. 2d 4. 4-5 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1995). Petitioner has failed to show that counsel's alleged failure to advise him of the right to testify prejudiced his defense.

Therefore, it is

ORDERED and ADJUDGED that the Defendant's Motion is hereby denied as it is without



(APP "D")

### IN THE CIRCUIT COURT, FOURTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUITOF THE STATE OF FLORIDA, IN AND FOR CAPHOON COUNTY

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Plaintiff,

٧.

CASE NO,: 93-1

96 JUL 30 P3 02 WILLIE 183 All 141 WILLIE 193 All 141 PERIC OF 1 193 All 141 93 P 1 193 All 141 93 P 1 193 All 141

BILLY W. DANIELS, JR.,
Defendant.

#### MOTION FOR RE-HEARING

comes now, the Defendant, BILLY W. DANIELS, JR., who requests Re-Hearing pursuant to Rule 3.850, (g) FLA. R. CRIM.

P. of the June 26, 1996 order denying his 3.850 Motion, and alleged Re-Hearing is timely filed, and avers as follows:

- 1. On May 28, 1996 the defendant submitted a timely 3.850 Motion.
- 2. On June 26, 1996 the Court denied said Motion without hearing.
- 3. The Defendant submitted two issues before the Court which require a Re-Hearing.



(APP"E")

### IN THE CIRCUIT COURT, FOURTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT' OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA, IN AND FOR CALHOUN COUNTY

STATE OF FLORIDA, Plaintiff,

CASE NO. **93-177 - 183** 

VS.

BILLY **W.** DANIELS, JR., Defendant,

ORDER

THIS MATTER is before the Court on the Defendant's Motion for Rehearing on the Defendant's Motion for Post Conviction Relief which this Court denied on June 26, 1996 and the Court having considered the Defendant's Motion for Reheating finds that it should be denied; it is thereupon

ORDERED that the Defendant's Motion for Rehearing be and the same is hereby denied.

DONE AND ORDERED in Chambers. at the Fourteenth Judicial Circuit. this 17th day of July. 1996.

CLINTON E. FOSTER CIRCUIT JUDGE

I hereby certify that a true copy of the foregoing has been furnished via U.S. Mail to Billy Wayne Daniels, Jr., DC# 580723, Century Correctional Institution, P.O. Box 248, Century, FL 32535, this 17th of July, 1996.

Debbie Gehris, Judicial Assistant

(46)

(AP"F")

## In The Circuit Court, Fourteenth Circuit of The State of Florida, In and For Calhoun County

CALHOLIN COUNTY CLERK FILE OR 1 RD

Billy Wayne Daniels	<i>Jr.</i> 96 Ju 25	A10:37	<u></u>
Defendant / Appello	antwille b.v	<del>45[</del>	
VS.	CLERK OF CO	Case No. <u>93-17</u>	<u>7-183                                    </u>
State of Florida			<b></b>
_ Plaintiff / Appellee	/		
	Natice of Angeal		,

Notice is hearby given that Dedendant / Appe Hant, Billy Wayne Daniels Jr.

pursuant to and in accordance with Bules of Court 1993. Florida Rules of Appelli

?rocedure rule 9.140 (g), appeals to the District Court of Appeal, First District. State

of Florida, the final order of this Court rendered on the 11th day of June, 1996.

The nature of the order is a final order denying Detendant / Appellant Motion for Post Conviction Relief, pursuant to and in accordance with Rules at Court, 1994.

Florida Rules at Criminal Procedure, rule 3850, Motion for Re-Hearing denied on the 17:

day at July 1998.

Respect fully Submitted this

22 day of July, 1996

Selle Lelegan Danish 858072

Box 207 2-141

Century Work Camp

P.O. Box 248

Century, Florida 32535-0248

Detendant | Appellant

In Propia Persona

(APP"G")

Hon. Jon S. Wheeler, Clerk	From:	Billy Daniels 580723		
First District Court of Appeals	•	Bex #137 Dorm A2-567		
		Holmes Work Camp A.O. Box 220		
300 Martin L. King JR., Blud.	<del></del>			
Tallahassee, Florida 32799-1850		Bonifer Florida		
Dear MR. Wheeler:		Bonstay, Florada 32425-0220		
I appealed a Post Conviction Re	lief Motion Fro	om Calhoun County		
on July 25, 1996. The Clerk in Calhoun				
is consolidated with my Direct Appeal,				
I've filed a Motion dated Febru				
hopefully resolve my Post Conviction				
letter and a Motice of Inquiry to y				
my case so number of the July 25,00				
received a reply. Your reply as to a		and the second s		
of the July 25th 1996 appeal is very urgent to me because I had to				
use the only case number I knew the				
with, see the February 8th 1997 Motion.				
If by chance I've not used the M	ight case nun	aberon the		
February 8th 1997 Motion please Work	· ·			
soon es possible.				
·	Sincerely	)		
	Billy W. De			
FIA STAT 9	2.525	·		
Iunder	the Denalty	of perjury did		
Certify this letter to the Clerk of Done this day of February 19	fThe First	District Court.		
Done this day of February 19	97			
/		7		
		(APP"H")		

To: Deputy Clerk, Shelly You Calhoun, Clerk of Court 425 E. Central Ave. Blowntstown, Florida 32424 From: Billy Danvels 580723

Box #137 Dorm A2-567

Holmes Work Camp

Rd. Box 220

Bonsfay, Florida 32425-0220

Dear Shelly:

Five not received a docket number from the First District Court on my Post Conviction Relief Motion, appealed July 25th 1996. However, I do have the statement that this case was prepared by you on August 17, 1996, but nothing to certify that you did mail it, and to whom you mailed it to. For clarification, please certify to me that you did mail this case, and to whom all it was mailed to, and the date it was mailed.

Sincerely, Billy W. Danselff.

I. \_\_\_\_ under the penalty of perjury did

Certify this letter to the Calhoun County Clerk of Court.

Done this \_\_\_ day of February 1997.

(APP"I")



MARCH 6, 1997

BILLY WAYNE DANIELS #580723 BOX 207 2-141 CENTURY WORK CAMP P 0 BOX 248 CENTURY, FL, 32535-0243

RE: STATE OF FLORIDA VS. BILLY WAYNE DANIELS, JR. CALHOUN COUNTY CASE NOS. CIR 93-177-183

#### DEAR BILLY:

I HAVE STRAIGHTENED EVERYTHING OUT WITH THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL. THE PROBLEM WAS THAT I DIDN'T SENT A SEPARATE CERTIFIED COPY OF YOUR NOTICE OF APPEAL, LIKE I HAVE ATTACHED, WITH YOUR RECORD. THAT IS WHY IT WAS CONSOLIDATED WITH YOUR OTHER APPEAL.

BUT AS OF TODAY IT HAS ALL BEEN TAKEN CARE OF AND YOU SHOULD BE GETTING A LETTER WITH THE NEW APPEAL NUMBER ON IT.

I AM SORRY THAT IT TOOK SO LONG TO STRAIGHTEN OUT BUT IF THEY HAD TOLD ME THAT WAS WHAT THEY NEEDED THE FIRST TIME IT COULD HAVE BEEN HANDLED A MONTH OR TWO AGO.

SINCERELY.

SHELLY YON DEPUTY CLERK

(APP"J")



March 6, 1997

FIRST DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL 300 MARTIN L. KING, JR. BLVD TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-1850

ATTN: VICKI

RE: BILLY WAYNE DANIELS, JR. VS. STATE OF FLORIDA

CALHOUN COUNTY CASE NO. CIR 93-177-183

DCA NO.

DEAR VICKI:

PURSUANT TO OUR TELEPHONE CONVERSATION THIS MORNING, I HAVE ENCLOSED A CERTIFIED COPY OF THE NOTICE OF APPEAL CONCERNING THE ABOVE-REFERENCED ACTION. I HOPE THIS COPY STRAIGHTENS THIS OUT, IF IT DOESN'T GIVE ME A CALL.

SINCERELY,

SHELLY YON
DEPUTY CLERK

(904) 674-4545

/SSY

(APP"K")



DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL FIRST DISTRICT STATE OF FLORIDA TALLAHASSEE. FLORIDA 32399-1850

JON S. WHEELER CLERK OF THE COURT

(904) 488-6151

March 13, 1997

Mr. Billy Wayne Daniels, Jr. DC **#580723**Century Correctional Institute **P.O.** Box 248
Century, FL 32535-0248

RE: Billy Wayne Daniels, Jr. v. State of Florida Case No.: 97-900

Dear Mr. Daniels:

This letter is written in response to your February 21, 1997, letter received in this court on February 25, 1997, in which you asked about your appeal of a denial of a postconviction motion on July 25, 1996. This court received that notice of appeal on March 10, 1997, and has set it up as the above-referenced case. Your motion to dismiss the appeal, etc., filed on February 11, 1997, has been put into that case and is under consideration by the court.

I hope this information is of assistance to you.

Sincerely yours,

Jon S. Wheeler

Clerk of the Court

JSW/dch

(AM"L")



### DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL FIRST DISTRICT STATE OF FLORIDA TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32399-1850

JON S. WHEELER CLERK OF THE COURT

(904) 488-6151

March 13, 1997

Honorable Willie D. Wise Clerk of the Circuit Court 425 E. Central Avenue Room 130

RE: Billy Wayne Daniels, Jr. VS State of Florida

Case Number: 97-00900 Lower Case number: 93-177

Dear Willie D. Wise

The Clerk of the Court acknowledges receipt of the following:

Notice of Appeal from the lower tribunal reflecting a filing date of 07/25/96. Receipt number N/A for filing fee attached.

In the future, please use this court's case number on all pleadings and correspondence filed in this cause.

BEFORE THIS CASE CAN BE ASSIGNED TO A PANEL OF JUDGES FOR CONSIDERATION, the attached Docketing Statement must be completed and filed with this Court by the Appellant/Petitioner. Appellees/Respondents/Amicus need to review the information on the Appellants/Petitioner docketing sheet and file a docketing sheet if required, and as explained in the attached docketing sheet.

Sincerely Yours,

JON S. WHEELER, CLERK

CC:

Billy Wayne Daniels Robert A. Butterworth

(AAP "M")

## TN THE DISTRICT COURT **OF APPEAL**FIRST DISTRICT OF FLORIDA TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA

### BILLY DANIELS, Jr.,

**Appellant** 

VS
STATE OF FLORIDA

Appellee

CASE NO: 96-02043

MOTION TO DISMISS APPEAL AS NULL AND VOID WITH SPECIFIC AND EXPRESSED INSTRUCTION FOR THE TRIAL COURT TO VACATE AND SET  $\mathbf{ASIDE}$  IT'S JUDGMENT DENYING APPELLANT'S RULE 3.850 MOTION AS BEING NULL AND VOID  $\mathbf{AB}$  INITIO

BILLY DANIELS Jr., Appellant in proper person, pursuant to Rule 9.300, Fla. R. App. Proc., submits this, his Motion to Dismiss Appeal as Null and Void with Specific and Expressed Instructions for the Trial Court to Vacate and Set Aside It's Judgment Denying Appellant's Rule 3.850 Motion as being Null and Void Ab Initio in the above styled and numbered case, and as a basis therefor states:

(APP"N")

DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL, FIRST DISTRICT

Tallahassee, Fl. 32399

Telephone (904) 488-6151

DATE March 25, 1997

CASE NO. 97-900

Billy Wayne Daniels, Jr. v. State of Florida appellant/petitioner appellee/respondent

BY ORDER OF THE COURT:

Appellant's motion filed February 11, 1997, seeking dismissal of this appeal with instructions to the trial court, is denied.

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is (a true copy of) the original court order.

Jon S. Wheeler, Clerk

By: Una Ohrob Deplity Clerk

Copies:

Billy Wayne Daniels

Robert A. Bu.tterworth

(APP "O")

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

FIRST DISTRICT, STATE OF FLORIDA

NOT FINAL UNTIL TIME EXPIRES TO FILE MOTION FOR REHEARING AND DISPOSITION THEREOF IF FILED

BILLY WAYNE DANIELS, JR.,
Appellant,

CASE NO. 97-900

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

v.

Opinion filed July 11, 1997.

An appeal from the Circuit Court for Calhoun County. Clinton E. Foster, Jr., Judge.

Billy Wayne Daniels, Jr., Pro Se, for Appellant.

No appearance for the State, for Appellee.

PER CURIAM.

The trial court lacked jurisdiction to consider appellant's motion for postconviction relief filed pursuant to Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure 3,850 during the pendency of appellant's direct appeal of the order revoking his. community control. Bryan v. State, 470 So. 2d 864 (Fla. 2d DCA 1985); Grizzell v. State, 187 so. 2d 342 (Fla. 1st DCA 1966); see State v. Meneses, 392 So. 2d

(APP"P")

(EXC)

905 (Fla. 1981). Accordingly, we affirm the denial Of appellant's motion for postconviction relief on this ground. See Robinson v State, 393 So. 2d 33, 35 (Fla. 1st DCA 1981) (stating that if trial court's order is sustainable under any theory revealed by appellate record, affirmance is proper notwithstanding that it may have been entered for a different or even erroneous reason).

MINER, ALLEN and LAWRENCE, JJ., CONCUR.

and the second of the first particular

### DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL, FIRST DISTRICT

Tallahassee, Florida 32399 Telephone No. (904)488-6151

September 2, 1997

CASE NO: 97-00900

L.T. CASE NO. 93-177

Billy Wayne Daniels, Jr. v. State of Florida

Appellant(s),

Appellee(s).

BY ORDER OF THE COURT:

Motion for rehearing, filed July 25, 1997, is DENIED.

Motion for clarification, filed July 25, 1997, is DENIED.

Request for certification, filed July 25, 1997, is DENIED.

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is (a true copy of) the

original court order. Jand. While

Jon S. Wheeler, Clerk

Copies:

Billy Wayne Daniels

Robert A. Butterworth

### IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OF FLORIDA FIRST DISTRICT

BILLY WAYNE DANIELS,

Defendant/Petitioner,

v.

CASE NO. 97-900 L.T. No. 97-177-187

STATE OF FLORIDA,
Plaintiff/Respondent.

#### NOTICE TO INVOKE DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION

Notice is given that Billy Wayne Daniels, Defendant/Petitioner, invokes the discretionary jurisdiction of the supreme court to review the decision in <u>Daniels v. State</u>, 22 FLW D1678 (1st DCA 1997) rendered on September 2, 1997, see rule 9.020(h)(1) Fla. R. App. P., because said decision is in expressed, direct and irreconcilable conflict with the decision of the 5th DCA in <u>Hall v. State</u>, 22 FLW D1877 (5th DCA August 1, 1997).

This notice is being submitted within the 30 day period prescribed by rule 9.120(b) Fla. R. App. P., such that Defendant/Petitioner deposited it in the hand of prison officials and entrusted its delivery to the court.

Pursuant to <u>Haaq v. State</u>, 591 So. 2d 614 (Fla. 1992) the notice becomes officially filed on the date it is entrusted to prison officials for delivery to the court. With the decision rendered in Daniels, supra, the 30 day period expires on Oct 2,

(APP"R")

Respectfully submitted

Billy Wayne Daniels

DC#

Holmes Correctional Inst.

31.42 Thomas Drive Bonifay, FL 32425

### CERTIFXCATR OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that a true copy of the foregoing has been furnished by U.S. Mail to the Office Attorney General, Honorable Robert A. Butterworth, 301 Martin L. King Jr. Blvd., Tallahassee 32399-1850, on October 1, 1997.

Billy Wayne Daniels

Respectfully submitted by,

Billy Wayne Daniels #580723

Holmes Work Camp 3182 Thomas Drive Bonifay, FL 32425

### VERIFICATION OF DOCUMENT

Pursuant to Fla. Stat. 92.525(2)

I, Billy Wayne Daniels, declares under the penalties of perjury, that the foregoing documents in this Appendix are true and correct.

Billy Wayne Daniels
Petitioner, pro se