WOOH

20 Mg

FILED

SID J. WHITE

FEB 4 1998*

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

Chief Deputy Clerk

CASE NO. 91,537

BILLY WAYNE DANIELS, JR,

Petitioner,

v.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

RESPONDENT'S ANSWER BRIEF

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

JAMES W. ROGERS
SENIOR ASSISTANT ATTORNEY
GENERAL
FLORIDA BAR NO. 325791

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL THE CAPITOL TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-1050 (850) 414-3300 ext. 4567

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Respondent, the State of Florida, the Appellee in the District Court of Appeal (DCA) and the respondent in the trial court, will be referenced in this brief as Respondent or the State.

Petitioner Daniels, the Appellant in the DCA and the petitioner in the trial court, will be referenced in this brief as Petitioner or by proper name.

All emphasis through bold lettering is supplied unless the contrary is indicated.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Petitioner has relied on appendices rather than the record on appeal for his statement of the case and facts. The appendices were not provided to the state. However, the State generally agrees with petitioner's statement of the case and facts and, because he is pro se, simply adds the following to clarify the posture of the case and the issue presented.

In the instant action, petitioner filed a motion in the trial court pursuant to Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure 3.850 during the time that his direct appeal of the judgment was pending in the district court. This rule 3.850 motion was denied on the merits by the trial court. Petitioner then sought review of the denial of the rule 3.850 motion in the district court. The district court recognized that the trial court did not have jurisdiction to consider the rule 3.850 motion while the direct appeal was pending but, instead of quashing the trial court order addressing the merits of a cause over which it had no jurisdiction, the district court affirmed the trial court decision on the merits. Petitioner sought rehearing in the district court, pointing out that affirmance on the merits would cause any subsequent rule 3.850 to be successive or abusive and would procedurally bar consideration on the merits. The petition for rehearing was denied and the petitioner sought review here. The state filed a jurisdictional brief which acknowledged that the district court decision to simply affirm the trial court

order was not only in direct and express conflict with decisions of this Court or of another district court but was also in error.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The district court erred in affirming the trial court's denial of petitioner's rule 3.850 motion on the merits. The district court recognized that the trial court had no jurisdiction to consider the merits of the rule 3.850 motion and, accordingly, should have quashed the decision of the trial court acting beyond its jurisdiction. This would have accurately reflected the posture of the case and would have protected the rights of both parties in any subsequent proceedings in either state or federal court.

The district court decision should be quashed and the district court instructed that jurisdictional questions must, as a matter of law, be addressed at the threshold and that the absence of jurisdiction precludes any further consideration of the merits of any action.

ARGUMENT

ISSUE I

DID THE DISTRICT COURT ERR IN AFFIRMING THE DENIAL OF PETITIONER'S RULE 3.850 MOTION ON THE MERITS (RESTATED)

Petitioner's pro se brief presents three questions to which arguments are then addressed. Because there is in fact only one issue, and no apparent disagreement between the parties on that issue, the state addresses the single restated issue above.

It is uncontroverted that petitioner erred in filing a Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure 3.850 motion in the trial court when his direct appeal of the same judgment had not been decided. It is also uncontroverted that the trial court erred in denying the rule 3.850 motion on the merits rather than dismissing it for lack of jurisdiction. State v. Meneses, 392 So.2d 905 (Fla. 1981); Hall v. State, 697 So.2d 237 (Fla. 5th DCA 1997). The district court itself recognized this but erred in affirming the trial court order denying the rule 3.850 motion on the merits. As petitioner points out in his brief here and in his rehearing motions in the district court, this affirmance on the merits severely disadvantages him for the purpose of seeking proper rule 3.850 relief after the direct appeal ends. Having lost on the merits of his first rule 3.850 motion, any subsequent rule 3.850 motions will face substantial procedural and legal bars under the terms of rule 3.850 which states in relevant part:

A second or successive motion may be dismissed if the judge finds that it fails to allege new or different grounds for relief and the prior determination was on the merits or, if new and different grounds are alleged, the judge finds that the failure of the movant or his attorney to assert those grounds in a prior motion constituted an abuse of the procedure governed by these rules.

This rule against successive motions and abuse of process where the initial motions was denied on the merits is well settled.

Bundy v. State, 538 So.2d 445 (Fla. 1989); Delap v. State, 513

So.2d 1050 (Fla. 1987); McBride v. State, 524 So.2d 1113 (Fla 4th DCA 1988); Rankin v. State, 168 So.2d 324 (Fla. 1st DCA 1965).

This Court's decision in McCrae v. State, 437 So.2d 1388, at 1390-91 (Fla. 1983), summarizes the contrasting aspects of the rule as they apply here very well. On the one hand, a successive motion should be "summarily denied when it is based on grounds that have been raised in prior post-conviction motions under the Rule and have been decided adversely to the movant on their merits.". This is the situation, and the procedural bar, that petitioner now faces should he attempt to file a rule 3.850 motion - his first motion has been denied on the merits but has not, in fact, been considered on the merits by a trial court with jurisdiction. On the other hand, "this restriction against successive motions on the same grounds is applied only when the grounds raised were previously adjudicated on their merits, and not where the previous motion was summarily denied or dismissed for legal insufficiency." The latter is the situation which petitioner seeks, and to which he is entitled, - his first motion should have been dismissed for lack of jurisdiction and not decided on the merits; the district court, on review, should have quashed the trial court order for lack of jurisdiction, thus

presenting petitioner with an opportunity to refile the rule 3.850 motion when jurisdiction returned to the trial court. Once the district court recognized the lack of jurisdiction in the trial court, the district court had no jurisdiction to go beyond that determination by searching for alternate reasons to affirm the decision below. Given the absence of jurisdiction, the trial court order was a nullity and could not be affirmed or reversed on any legal grounds.

The error of the district court, and the underlying faulty reasoning, also impacts the rights of both parties in any subsequent federal proceeding. In federal habeas proceedings, a critical threshold, i.e., jurisdictional, question is whether the habeas petitioner's federal claims have been previously presented to the state courts and, if they have, were these claims procedurally barred by independent state grounds or were they denied on their merits. All federal habeas proceedings challenging state judgments are controlled by the answers to these threshold questions. 28 U.S.C. 2254(b); Coleman v. Thompson, 501 U.S. 722, 115 L.Ed.2d 640, 111 S.Ct. 2546 (1991); Harris v. Reed, 489 U.S. 255, 103 L.Ed.2d 308, 109 S.Ct. 1038 (1989). The district court's ambiguous refusal to clearly distinguish between rule 3.850 motions which are procedurally barred by a lack of jurisdiction and those which are denied and affirmed on their lack of merit is a substantial error of law which not only denies parties their rights but serves also to

severely overload both the state and federal systems with unnecessary claims and pointless litigation.

The district court's long-standing misunderstanding and misapplication of jurisdictional questions is further illustrated by its decisions in Ford v. State, 575 So. 2d 1335 (Fla. 1st DCA), review denied, 581 So. 2d 1381 (Fla. 1991) and Stone v. State, 688 So.2d 1006 (Fla. 1st DCA), review denied, 697 So.2d 512 (Fla. 1997), where the district court announced a continuing policy of not addressing jurisdiction until full briefing and review on the merits had been completed. This independent policy is contrary to statute, rule, and case law. Section 924.051(3) &(4), Florida Statutes (Supp. 1996) as construed and upheld by Amendments to Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure, 685 So.2d 773 (Fla. 1996); Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.140(2)(B); and Mendez v. Ortega, 134 So.2d 247 (Fla. 1961), Bohlinger v. Higginbotham, 70 So.2d 911 (Fla. 1954), West 132 Feet v. City of Orlando, 80 Fla. 233, 86 So. 197 (Fla. 1920); Ford Motor Company v. Averill, 355 So.2d 220, 221 (Fla. 1st DCA 1978).

CONCLUSION

The district court decision below should be quashed with an accompanying opinion correcting the fundamental misunderstanding of jurisdiction which the district court decision reveals.